LIB 249 3:00 - 4:30

#### Minutes of March 23, 2016

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	Call to Order		
	Approval of Minutes from March 2, 2016		Vote was postponed due to lack of quorum.
	President's Report	Presidential Search Timeline and Updates: The 15-member screening committee is Board-approved: J Gilbert is working with Executive Committee to fill the four Senate-selected positions. First-level interviews will be May 12 and 13 with the campus forum May 18 and Board approval June 23; it should be possible to get candidate information to the campus well before the forum date. There will possibly be a last Senate meeting May 18 following the forum event.  Full-Time Faculty Recruitments: We currently have three full-time faculty openings, the first two resulting from using the Senate rubric established for filling vacancies:  • Kinesiology/Head Coach (Women's Basketball) – closes April 14  • Heating, Ventilation, Air-Conditioning and Refrigeration (HVAC/R) – closes April 14.  • Nursing (Medical Surgical) – Open Until Filled Second-level interviews have also been scheduled for Biology, Earth Science, and Geography; these positions would have Fall starts.	

			_
Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	New Business	District Update: Chancellor Baron expressed thanks to all who helped with the Accreditation process; he cited the great collaboration with Glen Kuck and accreditation liaison officers. District hopes for a best-possible result, i.e. getting off sanctions, in June. The Board of Governors at the State Chancellors' level voted, with presidents and chancellors approving, to move forward with a two-track approach to ACCJC. Track 1: demanding immediate changes in their communication/transparency and failure to meet federal guidelines. Complaints include an unnecessarily heavy-handed approach, too focused on punitive sanctions instead of improvement. Track 2: long-term, a change in accrediting agencies is being considered. ACCJC has been so difficult to work with (disingenuous, inappropriate) the CCCs are setting up committees to work on possibly establishing ties with Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) (ACCJC's parent company). Another rationale is that as CCCs are piloting four-year degrees, accreditation by an agency handling four-year institutions is desirable.  As of March 31, Institutional Effectiveness Partnership has been engaged to continue District's traction in best-practices improvement. A \$150K accompanying State Chancellor's grant to District is a possible result; either College can also engage IEP and apply for similar funds.  Chancellor Baron shared details of a charge to the District Budget Committee, stressing the necessity of hiring more full-time faculty in order to meet the 50% Law, Faculty Obligation Number (FON), and the 75/25% rule (having 75% of classes taught by FT faculty). Recent negative trends include multiple early retirement incentives that didn't permit rehiring, three years of economic downturn resulting in a 25% reduction in classes offered throughout the District, and now the recent increase in enrollment creating a need for FT faculty. District added eleven new full-time positions with hopes of adding five additional positions based on early-retirement incentives. B	

LIB 249 3:00 - 4:30

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	New Business (cont)	He cited AB 288 (putting more classes in high schools), restoring the co-op plan that serves working students and mentors those getting credit for work experience. "I count on you to do your very best; this is the year to get extra growth."  District Office just finished its Program Review process; unfortunately, only 150 of 1,200 surveys were returned. District Police and Print Shop had especially positive satisfaction marks. 96% of respondents say it's very important to be in touch with what is going on at District. Classified, but not faculty, are logging on to noon webinars. He said the Institutional Effectiveness Group is looking at human resources, integrated planning, and transparency in processes, i.e. how does the Board follow its own processes? The Board needs a local orientation process for new members.  Education Planning Initiative: Yancie Carter, Matriculation Coordinator, presented material. R Shabazz is Executive Co-Sponsor. Robert McAtee: District Project Lead. Marco Cota, Ailsa Aguilar-Kitibutr, Carmen Rodriguez, Project and Functional Leads. Yancie Carter, Davena Burns-Peters, Dirksen Lee, Steve Silva, Faculty Leads. Andy Chang: IT Lead. Starfish Early Alert allows faculty to "learn more, earlier about your students," offering faculty-frientigly progress surveys. It allows both faculty and system to trigger alerts and customize unlimited flags and "kudos." The system empowers students to engage with faculty, using embedded services catalogues and kiosks, has simple appointment tools that sync with calendars, and captures notes, tasks, referrals, and success plans. Early Alert WorkFlow Process:  1 Instructor submits progress survey and raises flag  2 Student and counselor receive respective notifications  3 Counselor reaches out to student and comments on flag in Starfish  4 Student makes appointment for services  5 Counselor clears flag and enters "close the loop" comments which are sent back to instructor General background: Educational Planning Initiative (EPI) gives a universal ed plan for	

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	New Business (cont)	EPI Expectations: Instructors: raise flags when appropriate, submit progress surveys when emailed Counselors: receive email notification from Starfish, record follow-up actions in Starfish, add notes, schedule appointments, clear flags Students: respond to email notifications when flagged, contact appropriate support office Short-term success will be measured by: adoption of Starfish, increased consistency of processes across offices, engagement, course completion. Long-term success measured by: year-to-year persistence, certificate and degree completion  J Lamore commented that the Achilles heel is student lack of response to emails. The program falls apart if faculty and students don't respond. Text messaging is a feature option.  Students do open personal emails much more than college emails; a workshop might help student forward from one to the other.  STEM: Priority Registration & Funding: Marc Donnhauser reported that SI and tutoring were central components of HIS STEM PASS Go project; SI pairs faculty with trained student leaders to offer intensive support to students in gateway courses. PASS GO has developed unique enhancements to SI to motivate both the student leaders (SIs) and students.  "Students do tend to learn from other students." The Kansas City model has been tweaked to fit SBVC's student population. He noted that incoming students often don't take Accuplacer seriously, neglect to take senior HS math, then score way below their normal skill set (and can't retest). SBVC offers two-hour pre-assessment workshops (faculty and SIs) at feeder high schools 1-2 weeks before testing; a workbook covers developmental math course offerings.  Valley currently has 52 SIs in math, chemistry, biology, CIT; 1498 students currently participate. Across all ethnic groups, SI participation leads to measurable improvement in success rates (data from Spring 2014 and Spring 2015). STEM course breakdown success rates and retention statistics were all encouraging. H Crogman questioned the validity of statistics and whe	

LIB 249 3:00 - 4:30

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
Tillie	Торіс		I dittier Action
	New Business (cont)	J Gilbert posed two issues: 1) Can we identify STEM students? (Yes). Do we want them to have priority registrations? 2) The 5-year grant expires September 30, 2016. Current funding is for just seven tutors. Program Review requested 30 SIs and 30 tutors; current levels are 52 / 40. The PR request was for \$406K; Program Review made it the #1 priority request. R Pires said that, according to the President, because the district fund balance is below 15%, SBVC's fund balance has been frozen. The repeated past mantra was that we not institutionalize something as long as a grant is in place. S Bangasser: "If things work, we institutionalize them. It's time to bite the bullet and fund Supplemental Instruction and tutors for the campus; any grants we get can expand the numbers." M Donnhauser reminded that we can receive FTES funds in conjunction with Student Support/tutoring services.  College Textbook Affordability Act: R Pires attended a March 2 information session regarding AB 798, College Textbook Affordability Act 2015 and its attendant Open Education Resource Adoption Incentive Program. Legislation in 2012 created an Open Education Resource Council to deal with textbooks in fifty of the most popular classes. SB 1053 created a "library" where OERs could be stored. One legislative barrier is a required faculty buy-in and a dramatic change in educational culture. A \$3M grant is available to participating CSUs and CCCs. A grant proposal is due June 30; \$1K is available to any class section adopting OERs and saving students a minimum of 30% (10-50 sections required). A Senate resolution would be required, as well as a textbook affordability plan approved by the current Academic Senate and vetted with collegial consultation and collaboration. A campus coordinator would be needed with at least ten sections adopting open education for Fall 2016. R Pires outlined possible uses for the funding, e.g. professional development, OER curation activities, requisite release time, campus coordinator support (30% limit). However, fa	Motion by T Heibel that Executive Senate Committee draft a resolution supporting full funding for a future SI/tutoring program as per Program Review priorities. 2 <sup>nd</sup> – A Aguilar-Kitibutr. Voice Vote – unanimous.

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	New Business (cont)	Enrollment Ideas: Henry Hua shared the positive news that SBVC is closer than previously thought to its enrollment benchmarks; the target of 10,504 might be reached with Spring late-start classes and a robust summer (the 7-week session can be assigned to either academic year). "Faculty need to know student needs; we need strategies to communicate how valuable students are to us, and ways to daily celebrate their achievements." R Shabazz said the whole campus must focus on seamless enrollment management: marketing, outreach, instruction, e.g. 20K students who applied but never showed up. "We never communicated with those people." Traditionally, fall semester is our biggest draw; those students must be recruited. Students taking less than 12 units can be encouraged to add classes. Offerings between 3-7 p.m. could bolster enrollment. SBVC is planning an aggressive marketing plan (postcards, posters) re summer sessions: "Keep your momentum going." H Hua strongly urges faculty assistance with promotion. SBVC's marketing budget is \$40K (soon increasing to \$100K) compared to similar schools pledging half a million. R Shabazz: students should have the opportunity to register for a Fall term before leaving campus in May.	
	Old Business	Curriculum and Financial Aid: H Hua said seven programs are not on the state chancellor's office (5 certificates, 2 degrees); deans have been contacted. He has met twice with the office; 92 program modifications are being made. (Financial aid can continue to impacted students.) After consulting with evaluators and counselors, a catalog-correction addendum re unit-match issues, etc., will be sent out to students. SBVC is weighing an electronic catalog/schedule; we currently enter course information in four different areas, with increased potential for human error. "We need one determinative source: Datatel." In the seven programs, 144 students are impacted; they will have opportunity to qualify for degrees in closely related fields.	

LIB 249 3:00 - 4:30

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
	Committees	Ed Policy - no report. Student Services - no report. Personnel Policy - no report. Career & Tech Ed - no report. Financial Policy - no report. Equity and Diversity - no report. Legislative Policy - no report. Elections - no report.	
		Curriculum - L Hector said three workshops have been offered to deal with fall curriculum deadline dates; three time blocks have been tried, with Fridays working best. The committee also worked on the local CTE approval process; latest revisions have been shared with department chairs. Their feedback will be included in the final report to Senate.	
		Program Review - Professional Development -	
	Additional Reports	College President's Report - SBCCD-CTA - District Assembly - meets again in April. College Council - just met and went through the rubric for Head Football Coach.	
	Announce- ments	J Smith: We are considering a \$1.5M basic skills grant that will pick up some of the SI expenses; the application is due Friday, March 25. This will fund more pre-assessment workshops and expand hours in the writing center. New math accelerated courses (non-credit) require tutorial math. He noted that whatever grant monies are not given in the first cycle might be received in a modification application. Also, Institution Set Standards effectiveness measures will be calculated using either a five- or seven-year average and go one standard deviation above and below (acceptable floor).  H Hua: In non-credit classes students bear no cost. There are also no repeatability rules.	
		A Alsip: Aroma stress therapy workshop Thursday, March 24.	
		J Gilbert: advancement-in-rank committee will meet Thursday, March 24. He also described his spring break trip to Cuba, where Air Force One landed, bringing President Obama to his recent summit with Cuba's leadership; local reaction was very positive.	
5:05	Adjournment		

Time	Topic	Discussion	Further Action
Tillic	Торіс	Discussion	i ditilei Action